Electrical Systems Engineering Services II (ESES II)

Solicitation Number NNG11375927R

Draft RFP QUESTIONS – Part 2


GENERAL
1. Would the government consider conducting one-on-one meetings with each ESES-II prime bidder to discuss their questions prior to GSFC’s response to the questions and/or prior to release of the final RFP?  This was previously done effectively on the OMES procurement. 
ANSWER: The Government is not planning to conduct one-on-one meetings as described; however potential offerors are encouraged to contact the Contracting Officer directly to discuss any questions or comments they feel cannot be adequately conveyed in writing.

2. Phase-In:  Will the current contract overlap with the incoming contractor and does the outgoing contract contain a Phase-Out plan requirement? If such a plan exists, will the Government provide it in the Library?

ANSWER: There will be some overlap between the current ESES Interim contract and the ESES II contract.  The current contract does not contain a Phase-Out plan.
Sections L and M
3. Reference L.13, DRFP page 84: Does the Government plan to post information on current ESES Task Orders to the ESES II Library? Does the Government plan to post information about TOMS to the ESES II Library?
ANSWER: Yes.  GSFC is offering access to potential Offerors to view selected information related to current ESES Interim task orders via NASA’s Task Order Management System (TOMS) Library.  Request for a NASA TOMS Library Account can be made immediately to Jasmine Jett via phone or email.  Phone: 301-286-0689. Email Jasmine.N.Jett@nasa.gov.

4. Reference L.14(a)(2), DRFP page 85: “A copy of the proposal transmittal letter to DCAA shall be forwarded to the Contracting Officer for each cost proposal (prime and significant subcontractors) responding to this RFP.”  Question: Does the Government prefer hard copies of the referenced letters be forwarded (via mail or fax) to the Contracting Officer?  Or will electronic copies (submitted by email) be acceptable?
ANSWER: A hard copy of the transmittal letter should be included in the proposal documentation. The RFP will be revised to clarify the submission requirements for this item.
5. . Reference L.14(a)(2), DRFP page 85: “A copy of the proposal transmittal letter to DCAA shall be forwarded to the Contracting Officer for each cost proposal (prime and significant subcontractors) responding to this RFP.”  Question: Are the referenced copies of the proposal transmittal letter to DCAA required by the date specified in Block 9 of the SF33?
ANSWER: Yes. Copies of the transmittal letters must be included in the proposal package and submitted by the due date specified in Block 9 of the SF33.
6. L.14, pg 86 Proposal Content and Page Limitations indicates that Cost Volume (c) Basis of Estimates is limited to 20 pages, with an asterisk indicating that this number is to refer to "Prime and each individual significant subcontractor separately". In the text for L.17(h) Basis of Estimates (BOE) the draft states that the submission "shall not exceed 20 pages inclusive of Prime and subcontractors in compliance with the BOE page limitations set forth in Proposal Preparations—General Instructions provision of this RFP."  QUESTION:  These instructions are inconsistent.  Is the response to be 20 pages in total, or per team member?
ANSWER: The RFP will be revised to apply a 20-page limitation to the combined BOE submission of the Prime contractor and all significant subcontractors.  

7. Section L.14a(5) tells us to follow, as closely as possible, Section M in developing our outline. If we do so, the RTO response outline is sequentially illogical and would be difficult to evaluate. 
 
ANSWER: The instructions cited are with respect to the overall organization of the proposal.  The offeror is not restricted in the formatting of its RTO response and should do so as it sees beneficial.  The evaluations of the RTO responses are centered on content in determining level of completeness, understanding and effectiveness of the proposed task plan.  
8. Reference L.15(c)(6), DRFP page 89: Does the Government expect offerors to list subcontract values as dollars based on contract ceiling or as a percentage of workshare?
ANSWER: Subcontract value should be listed as dollars.

9. L.16.2. Subfactor B Paragraph 6 states: “Offerors shall provide written position descriptions for the specific labor categories envisioned for this requirement. This section does not exclude the position descriptions form the page count, implying that they are part of the Mission Suitability page count. Since there are numerous positions on ESES, and we are requested to describe levels associated with them, this list can get long. QUESTION: Will the Government exclude Position Descriptions from page count or move them into the cost volume?
(Similar Question): Reference Section L.16.3 (Subfactor B – Management Plan), page 92, and Section L.17.2(a), pages 95-96: The DRFP seems to instruct offerors to provide written position descriptions in the Mission Suitability Volume, Subfactor B AND in the Cost Volume, Attachment B, Section 6. Is this correct? If so, does the 100 page limit for Mission Suitability include the written position descriptions in Subfactor B?

(Related Question): Reference Section L.16.3 (Subfactor B – Management Plan), page 92: “Offerors proposing to use incumbent labor must use the Government’s incumbent labor position descriptions found in Exhibit 15.” Question: If an offeror is proposing to use incumbent labor for a given labor category, is the offeror required to include the entirety of the incumbent labor position description for that category in their response to Subfactor B (within the 100 page limit of the Mission Suitability Volume) or can the offeror simply reference the position description provided in Exhibit 15?
ANSWER:  Position Descriptions provided will be excluded from the page count specified for the Mission Suitability Volume in Section L.14(b)(1) of the final RFP. Written Position Descriptions must be incorporated into Attachment B, Section 6 as stated in Section L.17.2(a) of the RFP.
10. L.16 3. Subfactor B. and M.3 Subfactor B and L.17. 2. (k):  The instructions state “The phase-in plan shall clearly demonstrate an ability to assume full contract responsibility at the end of the phase-in period”.  The corresponding evaluation criterion identifies “The Government will evaluate how clearly the phase-in plan demonstrates an ability to assume full contract responsibility on the effective date of the contract.”  Given that the beginning of the phase in period and the effective date of the contract are the same date, this is impossible. We recommend issuing a separate FFP contract for phase in or otherwise clearly delineating the separation between “Phase in” and “Contract effective Date”.

ANSWER: Section M.3. Subfactor B, paragraph 7 will be revised in the final RFP to reflect that the Government will evaluate how clearly the phase-in plan demonstrates an ability to assume full contract responsibility by the end of the phase-in period.
11. Reference Paragraph L.17.1, DRFP page 95: “The escalation proposed for labor must be stated along with the actual escalation experienced in the last three years.  Provide a statement of rationale, including the derivation, for the proposed escalation rates.  If escalation is not proposed, explain why.” Question:  Given the widely acknowledged uncertainties in current economic forecasts, escalation would seem to present a significant opportunity for “cost gaming” to those so inclined.  For example, an offeror could use the Government-provided Incumbent Rates for year 1, then apply negative escalation factors to reduce the rates for subsequent years, basing their rationale on attrition and replacement with lower-paid employees.  Notwithstanding the fact that such an approach would not be in the Government’s best interest on a cost-reimbursable contract that seems to value incumbent experience, the offeror could accurately claim in the Mission Suitability volume that they plan to hire the maximum number of incumbents possible and pay them at incumbent rates.  Would the Government consider specifying “for evaluation purposes only” labor escalation rates to be used by all bidders?  If not, how will the Government ensure that Mission Suitability evaluators are made aware of, and duly consider the impacts of cost proposals with zero or negative escalation?
ANSWER:  The Government does not intend to specify labor escalation rates to be used by offerors. In accordance with Section M.4, the Government will evaluate offerors’ cost proposals for “cost realism” and determine the “probable cost” of performance by each offeror. Analysis conducted to determine probable cost will take into account any unreasonable escalation factors. In addition, an approach that is heavily reliant upon replacing incumbents with lower paid workers through attrition, will be evaluated subject to M.3.1 Subfactor B, with respect to the Offeror’s plan for staffing, maintaining and augmenting a qualified workforce to meet contract needs in a timely manner. 
12. Reference Paragraph L.17.2(a), DRFP page 95: “Offerors shall complete Attachment B…for each contract year. The direct labor and indirect rates are ‘not to exceed’ bid rates. During contract performance, offerors will be permitted to offer costs for task orders to be placed at lower rates than are listed in these matrix…”; Paragraph L.17.2(b) – first bullet, DRFP page 96: “…(indirect rates [in Exhibits 2A and 2B] must match the respective Contract Year indirect rates in Exhibit 7A) and Attachment B.”;  Paragraph L.17.2(c), DRFP page 98: “…Also, the rates (direct and indirect) in Exhibits 2A and 2B must be consistent with those proposed in Attachment B.”; AND Paragraph L.17.2(f), DRFP page 98: “…Offerors shall use the bid rates proposed in Attachment B for pricing the RTO.” Question:  Should the closing parenthesis in L.17.2(b) be moved such that the end of the sentence reads “…(indirect rates must match the respective Contract Year indirect rates in Exhibit 7A and Attachment B).”?  Must the direct and indirect rates used in pricing RTO #3 EXACTLY MATCH the rates listed in Attachment B, or must they merely be consistent with (i.e., not exceed) those rates?
ANSWER: The end parenthesis for this sentence at the end of the first bullet should follow “Attachment B” rather than “Exhibit 7A”.  This will be corrected in the final RFP. The direct and indirect rates used to price RTO #3 must exactly match the rates listed in Attachment B.
13. Reference L.17.2(a), Direct Labor and Indirect Rates Matrix, DRFP page 95: Attachment B (Direct Labor Rates, Indirect Rates, Other Direct Cost Rates, and Maximum Available Award Fee Matrices) contains “not to exceed” bid rates.  Question: Will these “not to exceed” bid rates in Attachment B only be used as ceiling rates for bidding the Representative Task Orders?  That is, are we correct in our understanding that they will not be used for billing purposes or used as ceiling rates for billing purposes on a cost reimbursable contract?
ANSWER: The rates to be provided in Attachment B will be used to develop cost estimates for task orders to be issued under the resulting contract.  The contractor may elect to use rates lower than the Attachment B rates for proposing task order estimated costs; however it may not use higher rates. For invoicing purposes, the contractor should present actual costs incurred which may be based on rates that are lower or higher than the bid rates specified in Attachment B.

14. L.17.2.(b) Government Pricing Model – Bullet 4 includes instructions for presenting composite rates in Exhibit 1A. QUESTION : Should this bullet be included under the instructions for Exhibit 2A rather than Exhibit 1A, since the mappings from Offeror Labor Categories to the GCNMLC’s actually occurs on Exhibit 2A rather than Exhibit 1A?
(Similar Question): Reference Paragraph L.17.2(b) – fourth bullet, DRFP page 96: “For each Government Contract Non-Management Direct Labor Category in Exhibit 1A the Prime Offeror shall insert the percentage of anticipated effort to be performed by the Prime and/or each Subcontractor. The Prime plus all Subcontractors Percent of Effort must total 100% for each Government Contract Non-Management Direct Labor Category.  For each Government Contract Non-Management Direct Labor Category, if a composite rate is comprised of 2 labor categories, the composite rate shall not contain any labor category with less than 40% of anticipated effort. For each Government Contract Non-Management Direct Labor Category, if a composite rate is comprised of 3 or more labor categories, the composite rate shall not contain any labor category with less than 30% of anticipated effort.” Question:  The latter part of this instruction ostensibly restricts the number of offeror categories that can be composited to yield a Government category rate.  However, the subject Exhibit 1A does not break down the Government categories by offeror categories, but rather by subcontractor percent of effort.  Should the restrictions on rate composites be moved to the discussion of Exhibit 2A (Paragraph L.17.2.(c)) which is a breakdown by labor categories, or is the intent to limit the number of subcontractors proposed for each Government category?
ANSWER 3: There is no limit to the number of subcontractors offerors may propose for each Government labor category.  The first two sentences of this section are correctly associated with Exhibit 1A.  However, the last two sentences under this bullet will be moved to L.17.2.(c) in the final RFP, which describes the development of composite labor rates in Exhibit 2.
15. L.17.2 (h):  The first sentence of this instruction requires a “BOE for the RTO only”.  Please clarify that this means a BOE only for RTO #3, consistent with the last paragraph in this section.  
ANSWER: The BOE is for RTO #3 only.  The final RFP will be revised to incorporate this clarification.
16. Reference L.17.2(h), DRFP page 99: All significant subcontractors are required to submit a BOE for RTO 3.  The definition of significant subcontractor in this context is referenced to Section 1 instructions of L.17.  In Section 1 it states the threshold is 5% of the GPM.  It is reasonable that a subcontractor could be planned for over 5% of the GPM, but be expected to perform far less than that (or even 0%) of RTO 3.  Question: Would the Government consider requiring only subcontractors that are expected to perform at least 5% of the proposed RTO 3 cost to provide BOEs?
ANSWER: The Government has considered this approach and elects not to change the instructions currently provided in the Draft RFP.
(Related Question): Reference paragraph L.17.2(h) Basis of Estimates (BOE), DRFP page 99. Are offerors permitted to submit a single BOE, inclusive of all required information for the prime and all significant subcontractors?

ANSWER: No.
17. L.17.2 (i):  The word “Conversation” in the title appears to be a typo.  Should it read: “Conversion”?

ANSWER: Yes. This typographical error will be corrected in the final RFP.
18. L.17.2 (k) and Exhibit 9:  The instructions for Exhibit 9 indicate that the Phase-In will be CPAF rather than FFP; however, the actual exhibit still indicates that it is to be FFP.  QUESTION: Which is correct?
ANSWER:  L.17.2(k) is correct. Exhibit 9 will be revised to reflect the CPAF nature of the requested proposal.
19. L.17.2 (k) Phase In Plan states that the 30-day phase in will be performed as a task order on the ESES II contract.  In order to issue the Phase-In task, the ESES II contract must be in-place by the beginning of the 30-day Phase In period, while ESES I is still ongoing.   If Phase In cannot begin until ESES II ends, it will be impossible to ensure continuity of work since preparations for ESES II cannot be completed prior to the end of ESES I. Typically; GSFC accommodates Phase-In through a separate contract, to allow current work to continue under the predecessor contract while the successor contract is put in place.  QUESTION: Will the ESES I contract and the ESES II contract overlap or will ESES I terminate before ESES II begins? 
ANSWER: There will be an overlap between the task performance period of the current ESES interim contract and the ESES II contract to ensure an orderly transition of ongoing tasks to the new ESES II contract. Phase-in will begin upon issuance of Task Order 1 under the ESES II contract and ongoing tasks will be transitioned to the new contract as soon as possible taking into account the nature and timing of the work performed under each task order.  The Contracting Officer and Contracting Officer’s Technical Representative (COTR) for the ESES interim contract will manage the transition of tasks from the ESES interim contract to ESES II.
We recommend that the Government consider issuing a separate FFP contract for Phase-In, as is typically done at GSFC to prevent adverse impact to ongoing work.

ANSWER:  At this time the Government is not contemplating a change to its plan to implement phase-in through the issuance of Task Order 1 under the contract.

20. L.18 (b) states: (b)     PRIOR CUSTOMER EVALUATIONS (PAST PERFORMANCE  QUESTIONNAIRES) requires that customers “return the questionnaire directly to the Government in a sealed envelope”.  Since Government customers are often busy, we recommend allowing them to fax or e-mail their questionnaires to encourage timely submissions to ESES II.

ANSWER:  Offerors’ customers may submit their questionnaires by fax or email directly to the Contracting Officer identified in section L.18(b). The final RFP will be revised to clarify that facsimile or electronic transmission of past performance questionnaires is acceptable.
21. Reference M.3.3, DRFP pages 109-110: Will the Government provide further detail as to how the elements of Subfactor B are weighted?
ANSWER: In accordance with NASA FAR Supplement 1815.304-70(a), evaluation factors below the Subfactor level are prohibited.
ATTACHMENTS

22. Attachment A: The list of Applicable Documents and Specifications on page 41 of the ESES-II SOW identifies NPR 7120.5 as a mandatory compliance document in the execution of the ESES-II SOW.  It appears that this document has been replaced by NM 7120-97 NASA Space Flight Program and Project Management Requirements, which is defined as the NASA Interim Directive (NID) for NPR 7120.5D. There is also a companion document to NPR 7120.5D that is titled NPR 7120.5, NASA Space Flight Program and Project Management Handbook, dated February 2010. Question:  Should NM 7120-97 and its companion handbook (NPR 7120.5, NASA Space Flight Program and Project Management Handbook, dated February 2010) be used to support the planning and execution of ESES-II Task Orders and Representative Task Orders (RTOs)? If not, what references should be used?
ANSWER: As can be expected, the documents cited in the SOW are subject to continual changes/revisions throughout the contract period.  The applicable documents section of the SOW states, “The latest updated version shall apply:” and should always be verified for most current versions via originator’s official on-line library systems.  Regarding this specific change…NPR 7120.5D will soon be revised to version “E”.  The NID is to be followed accordingly until this revision is officially released as stated in NODIS.  Its companion handbook mentioned will be added to the SOW as a reference.  Please note, both NPR 7120.5, its handbook, as well as SP-6105, The NASA Systems Engineering Handbook, will be listed as “reference” documents, and as such, are not prescriptive but rather an information source towards the successful accomplishment of the related tasks. 
23. Reference J.1, DRFP page 74:  If Attachment B (Direct Labor Rates, Indirect Rates, Other Direct Cost Rates, and Maximum Available Award Fee Matrices) is made a part of the ESES II contract, will the data provided in that attachment be protected from FOIA requests, as they contain company proprietary, competition sensitive rates and information?
ANSWER:  The Government does not release proprietary or competition-sensitive rates and information in response to FOIA requests. 
24. Reference Enclosure A and Attachment I:  Attachment I requires that the contractor provide specific historical data, including numbers of FTEs by Labor Category, average seniority, rate escalation information, and current weighted average unburdened hourly rates.  The table of labor rates provided with the DRFP includes only categories and composite incumbent rates.  Question: Will the Government provide all of the Attachment I data for the current ESES contract in the final RFP?
ANSWER:  The purpose for requiring the successful offeror to submit the information described in attachment I is to facilitate the solicitation of a follow-on contract.  The information requested enables the Government to develop the composite incumbent labor rates as shown in Enclosure A.  The Government will not release the information provided by the incumbent in the final follow-on RFP.
EXHIBITS

25. Reference Exhibit 1A and Section I:  Some of the ESES II labor categories listed in the GPM could fall under the Service Contract Act, however, the SCA clause is not included in Section I. Question: Is it the Government's intent for the SCA not to apply to this program?
ANSWER: The Contracting Officer has documented the determination that the involvement of a limited number of non-exempt employees, though anticipated, is incidental to the principal purpose of the contract, and therefore, the Service Act does not apply.

26. Reference Exhibit 1A: Quality Assurance is included in the GPM for the Manufacturing site, but Configuration Management is not, and Section L.17.2(h) states that all Management and Administrative positions are offsite.  Question: Is Configuration Management considered a Management and Administrative function for the purpose of the GPM?  If so, can offerors propose manufacturing site Management and Administrative positions?
ANSWER: Configuration Management is not considered a Management and Administrative function for purposes of the GPM. The hours attributed to the Quality Assurance labor category are task-specific.  If an offeror plans a managerial-level position for Quality Assurance or any other labor category, those hours should be reflected in the Management and Administrative labor section of Exhibit 1A.
27. Exhibits 1, 2, and 15: The position descriptions reference a “Flight Operations Systems Engineer II” but none of the Exhibits or Attachments references this labor category.  Will this category be added to the final RFP?
ANSWER:  The “Flight Operations Systems Engineer II” labor category is shown in Exhibit 2A, where offerors are requested to show the development of the labor rate.  Although no hours are attributed to this position in the Government Pricing Model the labor rate for this category will be incorporated into the labor rate matrix in Attachment B. 

28. Exhibits 1 and 15: The Labor Categories presented in the draft RFP worksheets are not consistent from workbook to workbook.  Question: Will this be corrected in the final RFP to ensure all eligible bidding categories are consistent? 
(Similar Question): Reference Exhibit 1A, Exhibit 2A, and Exhibit 15; Enclosure A: The referenced items all contain listings of ESES II labor categories.  In comparing these four listings, we find the following apparent discrepancies:

a. Configuration Management Specialist, Flight Software Engineer, and RF Engineer appear in all except Exhibit 1A (i.e., no labor hours allocated to these positions).

b. Group Manager, Purchasing Agent, and Resource Analyst appear only in Exhibit 1A;  Manufacturing Manager appears only in Exhibits 1A and 2A (i.e.,  no Incumbent Rates and no Position Descriptions provided for these 4 positions).

c. Jr. Electrical Technician does not appear in Exhibit 15; however, Junior Electrical/Electronic Technician appears only in Exhibit 15, and perhaps was intended to be the same category.

d. Flight Operations Systems Engineer II appears in all except the “Incumbent Rate” listing.

Question: Will the Government resolve these discrepancies? 
ANSWER:  Only those labor categories which are to be costed in the GPM are shown in Exhibit 1A.  Other labor category inconsistencies have been addressed as follows:

· Three (3) labor categories were included in the Manufacturing Site segment of the Government Pricing Model (Exhibit 1A) in error: 
· Group Manager, 
· Purchasing Agent, and 
· Resource Analyst
These labor categories are considered Management/Administrative labor categories and will be removed from the Manufacturing Site section of the GPM in the final RFP. However, comparable labor categories should be included in the Management/Administrative labor section of the GPM as appropriate and consistent with each offeror’s management plan. 
· The Manufacturing Manager Position Description was inadvertently omitted from Exhibit 15; however it is included in Enclosure A.  It will be included in Exhibit 15 in the final RFP.
· The “Junior Electrical Technician” and “Junior Electrical/Electronic Technician” labor categories are the same.  The inconsistencies in the position titles have been corrected in Enclosure A and Exhibits 1a and 2a.

· The “Flight Operations Systems Engineer” labor category has been added to Enclosure A, however, an incumbent rate is not available for this position.
29. Reference Exhibit 1A: The GPM shows several positions as being less than full-time, including some on-site.  Question: Is the Government supplying on-site office/computer/phone/etc. for the positions listed as on-site with less than full-time hours? For instance, the Sr. Detect/Instrument Engineer position has 33 hours on-site and 10 hours off-site.  Are these two part-time employees or are they two full-time employees supporting other contracts?
ANSWER: Installation Accountable Government Property (IAGP) will be provided to on-site staff to the extent that it is available and needed to successfully fulfill AETD engineering requirements under the contract. The GPM, while based on historical staffing information does not accurately convey the number and status of FTEs currently working under the ESES Interim contract.  Current staffing in terms of FTEs and the IAGP provided to on-site FTEs will be posted on the ESES II library as soon as it is available.
30. Reference Exhibit 4: Exhibit 4 for RTO 3 asks for the hours for the prime and significant subcontractors only. Note that a subcontractor who is less than 5% of the GPM may be proposed as a significant portion of RTO 3 and we would expect the Government would want to see their hours and costs. Question:  How does the Government want offerors to account for non-significant subcontractors in Exhibit 4?
ANSWER: Exhibit 4A requires offerors to list all subcontractor hours. In Exhibit 4, under Total Direct Labor Hours, the footnote for total subcontractor labor hours will be corrected to clarify that labor hours for all subcontractors should be stated, not just labor hours for the significant subcontractors. 
Exhibit 14
31. RTO 1
1. What is the anticipated date for the QRS Project PDR?
ANSWER: November 2013. This will be updated in the RTO.

1. This RTO requires a visible light telescope that needs to be controlled to 150 K +/- 0.02K.  It is in a polar orbit, but is it looking at the Earth or out into space?

ANSWER:  Earth observing.  This will be updated in the RTO.
1. RTO 1 requires development of a Technology Risk Mitigation plan to include Flight Software Design.  Flight Software is included in the ESES II SOW (Function D.7 and D.9), but the Flight Software Engineer incumbent labor category is not included in the GPM.  Question: Should offerors assume that the Flight Software Design inputs required for the Technology Risk Mitigation Plan in RTO 1 are provided by the SES contractor or by the ESES II contractor using other labor categories? 
ANSWER: No. Offerors should provide all labor inputs required in the performance of RTO 1. Although the Flight Software Engineer labor category is not costed as part of the GPM, Offerors must still provide a labor rate for this position in Exhibit 2a.
32. RTO 2

1.1 The RTO 2 Task Description states that “The contractor shall verify the Li-Ion battery decision by performing a trade study against current technologies.”  Please clarify that the “Li-Ion battery decision.” Was the decision, to use the Li-Ion battery for the redesigned system?

ANSWER:  The wording in the draft RTOs is incorrect.  The reference to the Li-Ion will be removed from the Task Description, and text will be included in the background section to address the initial battery designs as Nickel Hydrogen (NiH2).
33. RTO 3

1.1 Can the government specify the high voltage range to be considered of the GHI Instrument?
ANSWER:  Voltage is less than 12kV. The RTO will be updated to include this information. 
1.2 Two similar questions, addressing the applicable document RTB-015, Instrument-4 Accommodation Study.   One question wondering if the document is mislabeled, and the other question asking if there are more instruments on the RTB spacecraft.
ANSWER:  The applicable document list is correct as written.  The GHI Instrument is replacing an existing instrument on the RTB spacecraft.
1.3 RTO-3 states "the C&DH system is a 1Gbit Ethernet bus, while the GHI Instrument used Mi-Std1553B for command and telemetry and Low Voltage Differential Signaling (LVDS) at 125 Mbps, for the high speed data bus". This would imply that the existing GHI instrument has two digital interfaces, one for T&&C and one for data, but the new design must have only one. Is that correct?
ANSWER: Yes, the two systems have different interfaces as described.
1.4 The RTO is silent on the potential scope issues tied to hardware deliverables in that only a flight instrument is mentioned. Will the Government require an engineering test unit or flight spare to support the Class C versus Class D mission?
ANSWER: The Government within this RTO does not require an engineering test unit or flight spare electronics to be delivered.  
